
MINUTES 

                   
  RANDOLPH COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

    
July 9, 2002 

  
  

The Randolph County Planning Board met at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, July 9, 2002, in the 
Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Randolph County Office Building, 725 McDowell Road, 
Asheboro, North Carolina. 
  
1. Chairman Maxton McDowell called  to order the Randolph County Planning Board 

meeting at 6:30 p.m. 
  
2. Hal Johnson, Planning Director, called roll of the members: Maxton McDowell, 

Chairman, present; Bill Dorsett, Vice Chairman, present; Lynden Craven, present; Al 
Morton, absent; Phil Ridge, present; Larry Brown, present; and Chris McLeod, present. 

  
3. Craven made the motion, seconded by Dorsett, to approve the minutes of the June 4, 

2002, Randolph County Planning Board meeting.  The motion passed unanimously. 
  
4.        Chairman McDowell announced the ruling of the North Carolina Supreme Court on the 

Mann Media Case.  Johnson said this was a major ruling of the Supreme Court, and it 
would serve as guidance for Boards charged with the responsibility of making “quasi-
judicial” decisions, and courts that are reviewing those decisions.  Johnson said that this 
had been an emotional and complex case, but the Planning Board’s ability to sift through 
the emotion and make a decision based on facts presented was instrumental in this 
Supreme Court decision.  

  
5. REQUESTS FOR PROPERTY REZONING: 
  

A. SAMUEL & JANET HUNT, Asheboro, North Carolina, are requesting that 
17.01 acres located on corner of Stutts Road/Back Creek Church Road, Cedar 
Grove Township, be rezoned from RA to CVOE-CU.  Parcel ID # 7731304943.  
The Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically allow a 10-lot subdivision 
for site-built homes only. 

  
Johnson reviewed a summary of the request and stated that the proposed 
subdivision had first been presented to the Planning Board in May.  The first 
proposal was for 12 lots with 1200-sq.-ft. site-built homes.  The land was located 
in a Secondary Growth Area, as reflected by the County Growth Management 
Plan.  Johnson said the site was difficult because of topographical features.  The 
Planning Board recommended by a 3-2 vote that the request be denied because of 
density and stormwater/erosion concerns.  The Board of County Commissioners 
considered the request in June and voted to send the request back for review by 
the County Planning Board.  Johnson said the County Commissioners asked the 
landowner to consider the density, unique topographical issues, and the minimum 



house size being proposed by deed restrictions.  Johnson said the Technical 
Review Committee had reviewed the revised proposal and were concerned about 
the increase in lots along Back Creek Church Road and Stutts Road.  Johnson said 
the new proposal would have more driveway connections along the two state 
roads than that of the original request.  
  
The Technical Review Committee reviewed this request and considered the 
Commissioners’ concerns about density and the minimum housing size.  The 
developer has redesigned the subdivision and reduced the number of lots 
from 12 to 10 lots.  However, the number of lots fronting along the existing 
state roads has increased from 7 to 10 lots and the number of driveway 
connections to the existing state roads has increased from 6 to 10 (due to the 
elimination of the proposed state road).  The minimum house size has been 
increased from 1,200 sq. ft. to 1,350 sq. ft. 
  
 

 
Jon Megerian, Attorney for Hunt, said that the original request was for 12 lots 
and now is 10 lots with an average lot size of just under 2 acres per lot.  The 
property is in a Secondary Growth Area where the minimum lot size is 1 acre.  
Megerian said that if we are going to recognize the new regulations, it should be 
considered that this is not in a Rural Growth Area and 3-acre minimum lot sizes 
are not required.  Megerian reminded the Board that they voted 3 to 2 to 
recommend to the Commissioners that they deny this request.  Megerian said that 
the property owner is proposing a larger average lot size and increased the 
minimum house size from 1200 sq. ft. to 1400 sq. ft.  Megerian said that the 
property owner is making a final modification of placing the cul-de-sac back into 
the plan.   Megerian said that it would decrease the number of driveway 
connections to the existing state roads.  Megerian presented a new plan to the 
Board that would have 6 private driveways and a new state road (that would 
connect to Stutts Road).  Megerian said it is their understanding that the Board 
doesn’t want 1-acre lots here and they understand why.  Megerian said that he 
realized there was some talk by some of the adjoining property owners that they 
want to see 5 lots here instead of 10 lots.  Megerian said this would be 
unreasonable.  Jerry King, Surveyor, was present and explained the new plan to 
the Board.  Brown asked Megerian if the property owner was willing to make any 
other changes to his request and Megerian answered that the property owner was 
present but he had not given him the authority to agree to any additional changes. 

  
Sammy Hunt, 865 Cable Creek Road, said that he has tried to answer any 
concerns the Board has had (with this new plan). 
McDowell questioned if the buffers were still being considered and Johnson 
answered yes and reviewed those buffers. 

  
Harold Gowdy, 3038 Stutts Road, said this is the fourth time we have met to 
consider this development and there has been very little changed.  Gowdy said 
that the supporters of this request would not want this in their community.  
Gowdy said that there is no water and sewer, the house sizes are not appropriate 



and the lot sizes are not appropriate for the area.  Gowdy said that the 
Commissioners asked that a workable solution be negotiated and Gowdy 
presented their (the neighbors’) proposal.  The proposal consisted of 5 lots, 
minimum house size of 1750 sq. ft., and a 35-ft. buffer around the perimeter of 
the property.  Gowdy said that if Hunt cares about the area he will also support 
this plan.  Gowdy said that this area is not an area for dense starter homes and 
asked the Board to do the right thing (and deny Hunt’s plan).  Dorsett asked 
about the construction of a house across the road from this site, and Gowdy said 
that it is a house being renovated and it will be 2300 sq. ft.  McDowell asked how 
they came up with 1750 sq. ft.  Gowdy said that they went into the County data 
base and came up with the average house size on this road.  Gowdy also said that 
the average lot size with houses on them is 9.7 acres.   

  
Doug Walker, 2819 Stutts Road, said that he realized that this area was 
designated a Secondary Growth Area but he realized that there are always some 
problems with any new plan.  Walker said that the people in this area want to set a 
high standard for this area and would like to see the standards set right.  Walker 
said they don’t believe that the area is compatible with a Secondary Growth Area.  
Brown told Walker that the 3 acres and 1-acre lot sizes is not set in stone; it is a 
minimum that the Board requires.   

  
Scott Walker, 2911 Stutts Road, said that he is remodeling the house that Dorsett 
questioned.  Walker said that they are not against construction but they would like 
to see a high standard placed on this area. 

  
Robert Baxter, 2956 Stutts Road, said that he felt 9 houses would be too many.  
Baxter said that he would not be opposed to 4 or 5 houses.  Baxter said that the 
lots fronting on Stutts Road and Back Creek Road are too cluttered (too dense). 

  
There were 14 people present in opposition to this request. 

  
Dorsett asked Hunt how long he has owned this property.  Hunt answered he 
purchased the property in February of this year.  Hunt said that the property has 
been for sale for many years and anyone could have purchased the property.   
Megerian said Hunt lives in the area. 

  
Brown said that he would be opposed to the number of lots as currently proposed. 

  
Dorsett said he understands the concerns of people who live on large tracts of 
land, and felt the Board should take these concerns into consideration.  Dorsett 
said the Growth management Plan recognizes that the County is a large and 
diverse land area, with each request to be reviewed on its own merits.  Standards 
outlined in the Growth Plan should be used as minimum standards when 
reviewing individual requests.  Dorsett said that when a person purchases property 
to develop  in an area, he should look at the area and see what is there and what 
would be compatible.  Dorsett said that if we turn this down we are not depriving 



him use of the property; we are just not allowing him to use the property in the 
manner he has requested. 

  
Ridge said that all the lots fronting on the road are about an acre and that is what 
affects the density of the area.  Ridge said that he realized that it is a tough piece 
of property to develop with the topography, but he would like to see the number 
of lots reduced at least to 8. 

  
Johnson said that the Board is always faced with difficult decisions when 
changes are proposed in a community.  Johnson said one of the reasons the 
Growth Plan was needed was to provide guidance in difficult and emotional 
land use decisions.  He said that although this particular area is relatively 
large tracts of land, it is surrounded by high density, conventional 
subdivisions.  Because of this land use, the land was placed in a Secondary 
Growth Area.  Johnson said the Board should use the Plan as guidance when 
making its land use decisions. 

  
McDowell questioned the neighbors how they came up with the average 
house sizes in the area.  Gowdy answered that they took all the houses on 
Back Creek Road and Stutts Road to establish the average house size. 

  
Craven said that the neighbors have come up with an excellent plan (5 lots).  
Craven said that there are a lot of large tracts within this area but eventually 
these large tracts will come before the Board.  Craven said that he agreed 
with Johnson’s advice of when in doubt go with the adopted plan. 

  
Dorsett said that since the Commissioners felt the other plan was too dense, 
he felt they would also consider this plan too dense. 

  
Dorsett made the motion to recommend to the Commissioners that this 
request be denied due to density.  Brown seconded the motion.   

  
McDowell asked if the Commissioners made any specific conditions they 
would like to see.  Johnson said that their concerns was the number of lots 
and the house sizes.   

  
Ridge said that the plan was 12 lots on 12 acres at the last Planning Board 
meeting and the Commissioners saw a plan of 12 lots on 17 acres. 

  
Brown asked about the number of drives originally requested and King said 
that it was 9 driveways and 1 road and now they are proposing 6 driveways 
and 1 road. 

  
Ridge asked if Hunt would reduce 1 lot in the intersection of the existing 
roads and add 1 lot on the new road.  Ridge said this would change the 
expense of the development very little but would change the density 
appearance in the area.  Hunt said that he would make this change to this 



request.  Hunt said that he has a buyer for the back lot that has plans to 
build a very large house. 

  
Dorsett withdrew his motion to deny the request. 

  
Ridge made the motion to recommend to the Commissioners that this 
changed plan be approved with the following conditions: 
  
**minimum house size of 1,400 sq. ft. (heated space) 
**3 lots fronting on Back Creek Church Road 
**2 lots fronting on Stutts Road (west of Baxter property) 
**5 lots (including the lot with the existing residence) fronting on the future 
state road (with each corner lot accessing the new road and not Stutts Road) 
**a Level #3 buffer,.(35 ft. buffer) consisting of 2 staggered rows of fast-growing 
evergreen trees spaced 10 ft. apart and one row of evergreen shrubs, shall be 
installed along the northern property line.  This row shall include no less than 4 
trees and 14 shrubs per each 100 linear feet.  The buffer requirements are 
recommended due to the extreme topography of the property, and the need to 
reduce stormwater erosion run-off to future residences. 
**Burial sites of stumps and trees (formerly cleared from the property) should be 
clearly shown on the subdivision plat.  
** Level 1 buffer using 35 ft. of natural trees and vegetation shall be maintained 
and platted along the western property line 
**Installation of wells must be properly constructed and certified as to potable 
water supply prior to the issuance of a building permit on each lot.  Concerns 
were consistently expressed at the NIM concerning availability of well water on 
adjoining parcels. 
  
Craven seconded this motion and the motion passed unanimously. 

  



B TOWER COMPONENTS, INC., Randleman, North Carolina, is requesting that 11.80 acres 
located on Hwy 64 East (just before Wright Street), Columbia Township, be rezoned from RA to 
HI/CU.  Parcel ID # 8702124344.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning District would 
specifically allow a manufacturing facility as per site plan.  Property Owner: Maxine Matthews. 
  
The Technical Review Committee met and found that this proposal was in compliance with 
the standards outlined in the new Growth Management Plan adopted by the Board of 
County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The Technical Review Committee 
recommended to the County Planning Board that this request be approved. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review Committee 
found supporting this recommendation are: 

  
Policy 1.1 The County will encourage new and expanding industries and businesses 

which (1) diversify the local economy, (2) utilize more highly skilled labor 
force, and (3) increase area residents’ incomes. 

  
Policy 3.1 Industrial development should not be located in areas that would diminish 

the desirability of existing and planned residential uses, nor should major 
subdivisions be allowed to encroach upon existing or planned industrial sites 
without appropriate buffers. 

  
Rodney Moody, South Fayetteville Street, Asheboro, said that this is a company in its infancy.  
They currently employ 22 and have plans to expand by 25+ additional jobs.  Moody said that the 
adjoining property is currently surrounded by commercial property.  Moody said that this is a 
relocation within Randolph County. 

  
Augie Peterson, 4326 Hwy 311, Randleman, said that they make modules (plastic components)  
for large cooling towers for industrial operations.  Peterson said that they are growing out of their 
current facility and this would be an expense of approximately $750,000 for the construction of 
the building.  Peterson said that the 22 employees will be relocated.  They currently lease a 
facility.  Peterson said that this year alone they have done $2 million.  Peterson said that the 
modules are for plants like Shearon Harris.  Peterson said that the outside storage yard would be 
for the modules, and he presented a picture of the parts they manufacture.  Peterson said that they 
are certified by EPA but they are not required to have these certifications.  Peterson said that they 
have 1 full-time shift and a skeleton 2nd shift.  Peterson invited the Board to come by their 
current facility on Hwy 311 to see the clean facility they run.   

  
Johnson said that this is not located within a watershed and is a good location for industry. 

  
Max Summey, 1342 Summey Town Road, engineer working with the project, said that they are 
currently working with the Town of Ramseur to obtain public sewer connection for the facility. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Brown made the motion, seconded by Craven, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 
request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
C CHUCK POWELL, Archdale, North Carolina, is requesting that 21.97 acres located on St. 

Peter Church Road, Randleman Lake Watershed, Providence Township, be rezoned from RA to 
CVOR-CU.  Parcel ID #’s 7766176782, 7766179008 and 7766187465.  The Proposed 
Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically allow a 3-lot subdivision for site-built 



homes, modular homes, and Class-A double-wides on permanent masonry foundation.  Property 
Owner: Alma Frazier. 
  
The Technical Review Committee met following the Neighborhood Information Meeting 
and found that the proposal was in compliance with standards outlined in the new Growth 
Management Plan adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  
The Technical Review Committee recommended to the County Planning Board that this 
request be approved. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review Committee 
found supporting this recommendation are: 

  
Policy 6.13 Conventional Residential subdivisions are anticipated of similar housing 

characteristics to the community. 
  

Policy 7.5 Site plans should be provided that design built-upon areas to specifically 
minimize stormwater runoff impact to streams and other receiving waters. 

  
Jerry King, Surveyor, said that the property had originally been divided into a minor 
subdivision and they are wanting to divide the back 16-acre tract into 3 lots.  King said that the 
road would be a private road maintained by the individual lot owners.  King said the homes 
would have a minimum of 1300 sq. ft. 

  
There was no one in opposition to this request. 

  
Dorsett said he felt this would be an asset to the community. 

  
Dorsett made the motion, seconded by Craven, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 
request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
D J & T LAND AND TIMBER, Seagrove, North Carolina, are requesting that 20.43 acres located 

on Fuller Mill Road North, Lake Reese Watershed, Tabernacle Township, be rezoned from RA 
to RLOE-CU.  Parcel ID #’s 6794548174 and 6794549309.  The proposed Conditional Use 
Zoning District would specifically allow a 3-lot subdivision for site-built homes only with a 
minimum house size of 1,400 sq. ft.   
  
The Technical Review Committee met following the Neighborhood Information Meeting 
and found that the proposal was in compliance with standards outlined in the new Growth 
Management Plan adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  
The Technical Review Committee recommended to the County Planning Board that this 
request be approved.  The Technical Review Committee recognizes the property owner 
would be required to plant a 35 ft. Level 3 Buffer. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review Committee 
found supporting this recommendation are: 

  
Policy 6.5 The protection of viable rural neighborhoods should be encouraged by 

compatible residential development to insure the continued existence as a 
major housing source and as a reflection of the long-term quality of life in 
Randolph County. 

  



Policy 6.10 Land that has been clear cut or forest harvested and is planned for major 
subdivision should retain a natural vegetative buffer zone along property 
lines fronting state roads. 

  
Policy 6.16 The County should preserve scenic views and elements of the county’s rural 

character by minimizing perceived density by minimizing views of new 
development from existing roads through use of natural buffers and open 
space. 

  
Jerry King, Surveyor, said that they are requesting 3 lots on 20 acres with individual septic 
tanks and wells.  King said that this adjoins a piece of property that was approved for 
development by the Commissioners last night.   

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Brown made the motion, seconded by McLeod, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 
request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
E RAY & LOIS SIMPSON, Gerton, North Carolina, are requesting that 10.19 acres located on 

Soapstone Mountain Road, Sandy Creek Watershed, Columbia Township, be rezoned from RA 
to RLOR-CU.  Parcel ID # 8725309631.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning District would 
specifically allow the re-division of Lot # 2, Maple Ridge Subdivision, into 2 lots for site-built 
homes, modular homes or Class-A doublewide mobile homes on permanent masonry foundation.   

  
The Technical Review Committee met following the Neighborhood Information Meeting 
and found that the proposal was in compliance with standards outlined in the new Growth 
Management Plan adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  
The Technical Review Committee recommended to the County Planning Board that this 
request be approved as consistent with rural large lot standards. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the Technical Review Committee 
found supporting this recommendation are: 

  
Policy 6.5 The protection of viable rural neighborhoods should be encouraged by 

compatible residential development to insure the continued existence as a 
major housing source and as a reflection of the long-term quality of life in 
Randolph County. 

  
Policy 6.23 The County should encourage the use of rural lot subdivision designs where 

the size of the lot allows for open space and groundwater recharge areas 
preserved by careful siting of the principal residence and accessory uses as 
noted through subdivision plat notations and related deed restrictions. 

  
Jerry King, Surveyor, provided the Board with the proposed restrictions and explained that they 
plan for 1200 sq. ft. homes.   

  
Johnson said that this is a Rural Growth Area and all the tracts are larger than 3 acres. 

  
Robert Wrenn, 2777 Soapstone Mountain Road, said that he purchased his 10-acre tract 
(adjoining this site) to be in the country.  Wrenn said that originally the site was denied for 
development, and the owner was required to maintain a minimum lot size of 10 acres per tract.  
Wrenn said that the land was sold this way, and they would like to keep it this way.  Wrenn said 
that they have concerns for the water table, and they want their investment protected. 



  
Johnson said that the 10-acre tracts were subdivided to avoid coming through the zoning 
process. 

  
Dorsett said that if there was something in the deed that wouldn’t allow the property to be 
subdivided it would not be allowed. 

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by Dorsett, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 
request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
5. SWEARING IN OF THE WITNESSES: 
  

“Do you swear or affirm that the information you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, 
and nothing but the truth, so help you God?” 
  
5 citizens took this oath. 

  
6. SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUESTS: 
  

A. KENNETH COX, Asheboro, North Carolina, is requesting a Special Use Permit to operate an 
appliance sales and repair business in an existing building to be located at 158 Loflin Pond Road 
on 1.20 acres, Franklinville Township, Zoning District RR, Parcel ID # 7782002208. 

  
Cox explained that he has operated his business since 1989.  Cox said that he reconditions 
appliances and it is a part-time business.  Cox said that he used to have outside storage and he 
has cleaned the property up.  Cox said that he plans to remove the old car from the property, and 
he plans to clean up the storage trailer and place it on a foundation.  Cox said that if the mobile 
home needs to be removed he would do so.  Cox said that the privacy fence was installed by his 
neighbor. 

  
Craven asked if the storage trailer was important to him, and Cox said he would like to keep it, 
but if it needs to be removed he would do so.  Craven said that he felt Cox has done a good job 
cleaning up the property and he didn’t have a problem with the trailer being left on the property, 
if it could be worked out. 

  
Dorsett asked if Cox planned to have any further outside storage and Cox said that he has a 
small fenced area to work outside.  Cox said that he has a trailer for his junk and when it gets full 
he takes it to the landfill. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to the request. 

  
Dorsett said he felt this would be a good transition between the commercial activity and the 
residential uses. 

  
Dorsett made the motion that this be approved with limited outside storage (on the trailer that 
takes the junk to the landfill).  Craven seconded the motion and the motion passed unanimously. 

  
B. CLIFFORD & VIRGINIA HUNT, Asheboro, North Carolina, are requesting a Special Use 

Permit to allow a Planned Rural Development of 3 residences for family use located at 4606 Zoo 
Parkway on 13.80 acres, Grant Township, Zoning District RA, Parcel ID # 7668651216. 

  



Hunt explained that this would be a home for her mother.  Hunt said that her father has passed 
away and they wanted to move her closer to them.  Hunt said that they have owned the property 
for 12 years. 

  
Johnson said that it is a well-maintained piece of property. 

  
Gilbert Brim, 545 E. Dorsett Street, said that he owns the property south of this site.  Brim said 
that he plans to build his retirement home here.  Brim said that he is concerned that additional 
mobile homes would be located here.  Brim asked if this type of development would de-value his 
property.  Brim said that he really doesn’t oppose the request but he did want to express these 
concerns. 

  
Dorsett said that if this was approved he would like to see the restriction that there be no more 
allowed. 

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by Dorsett, to approve this request with the restriction that 
there be no more mobile homes allowed on the property.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
C. PAUL & KIMBERLY DAVIS, Randleman, North Carolina, are requesting a Special Use 

Permit to allow a rural family occupation for a grading and backhoe business in a 35' x 50' 
building to be located at 9313 Walker Mill Road on 2.36 acres, Randleman Lake Watershed, 
Level Cross Township, Zoning District RA, Parcel ID # 7748943025. 

  
Davis said that he owns a track-loader and a backhoe and plans to complete his residence here 
next month.  Davis said that he has two employees, and the building is to keep the equipment 
inside.  Davis said that there will be no outside storage. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Craven made the motion, seconded by McLeod, to approve this permit with the restriction of no 
outside storage.  The motion passed unanimously. 

  
7. The meeting adjourned at 8:44 p.m.  There were 42 citizens present for this meeting. 
  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

NORTH CAROLINA 
RANDOLPH COUNTY 

  
  
  

 


